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BEFORE THE WASHI NGTON UTI LI TI ES AND
TRANSPORTATI ON COVM SSI ON

WASHI NGTON UTI LI TI ES AND
TRANSPORTATI ON COVM SSI ON, Docket No. UE-030751
Vol une 11

Pages 28 to 88

Petitioner,
VS.

AVI STA CORPORATI ON, d/b/a
AVI STA UTI LI TI ES,

Respondent .

N N N N N N N N N N N N

A hearing in the above natter was held on
Decenber 15, 2003, from1:25 p.mto 2:50 p.m, at 1300
Sout h Evergreen Park Drive Sout hwest, Room 206, O ynpi a,
Washi ngton, before Administrative Law Judge KAREN CAI LLE
and Chai rwoman MARI LYN SHOMALTER and Conmi ssi oner
Rl CHARD HEMSTAD and Conmi ssi oner PATRICK J. OSHI E.

The parties were present as foll ows:

THE COW SSI ON, by DONALD T. TROTTER, Seni or
Assi stant Attorney CGeneral, 1400 South Evergreen Park
Drive Sout hwest, O ynpia, Washi ngton 98504-0128,

Tel ephone (360) 664-1189, Fax (360) 586-5522, E-mil
dtrotter @wtc. wa. gov.

AVI STA CORPORATI ON, by DAVID J. MEYER,
General Counsel, East 1411 M ssion Avenue, Spokane,
Washi ngton, 99220, Tel ephone (509) 495-4316, Fax (509)
495- 4361, E-mail dneyer @vi stacorp.com

Joan E. Kinn, CCR, RPR
Court Reporter
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| NDUSTRI AL CUSTOMERS OF NORTHWEST UTI LI TI ES,
by MATTHEW PERKI NS, Attorney at Law, Davison Van Cl eve
1000 Sout hwest Broadway, Suite 2460, Portland, Oregon
97205, Tel ephone (503) 241-7242, Fax (503) 241-8160,
E-Mai | mail @vcl aw. com

THE PUBLIC, by ROBERT W CROWELL, JR.,
Assi stant Attorney General, 900 Fourth Avenue, Suite
2000, Seattle, Washington, 98164-1012, Tel ephone (206)
464- 6595, Fax (206) 389-2058, E-Mi
robertcl@tg. wa. gov.

Cl TI ZENS UTILITY ALLI ANCE AND SPOKANE
NEI GHBORHOOD ACTI ON PROGRAM by JOHN O ROURKE, 212 West
Second Avenue, Spokane, Washington 99201, Tel ephone
(509) 744-3370, Fax (509) 744-3374, E-Mi
o' rour ke@napwa. or g.
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1 PROCEEDI NGS

2 JUDGE CAI LLE: Good afternoon, we are here

3 for a hearing on the settlenment stipulation in Docket

4 Nunmber UE-030751. This is a hearing to determ ne

5 whet her the settlenent and stipulation is in the public

6 i nterest regarding the prudency of the ERM recovery

7 items in the filing that enconpasses from July 1st,

8 2002, to Decenber 31st, 2002.

9 We are in a hearing roomin the Conmmi ssion's
10 headquarters in Oynpia, Washington. M nane is Karen
11 Caille, | amthe presiding Admnistrative Law Judge, and
12 I will be joined by the Conmissioners in a few mnutes
13 I would like for the parties to please enter
14 your appearance. Short appearances are fine.

15 M. Perkins, | don't knowif | have a |ong
16 appearance fromyou, which includes |like E-mail and

17 address, so if you will give nme all that.

18 And sane for you, M. O Rourke, | don't

19 believe | have that fromyou. So let's begin with the
20 conpany.

21 MR. MEYER: Thank you, Your Honor, for

22 Avi sta, David Meyer.

23 JUDGE CAILLE: Go ahead, M. Perkins.

24 MR, PERKINS: M nane is Matt Perkins. 1'm

25 here for the Industrial Custoners of Northwest
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Uilities. | work for Davison Van Cleve. [It's 1000
Sout hwest Broadway, Suite 2460, Portland, Oregon 97239.
Qur phone nunber is (503) 241-7242, fax is (503)
241-8160. OQur E-mmil address is mail @vcl aw. com

JUDGE CAILLE: Thank you very nuch.

M. Cromnel | .

MR. CROWELL: Robert Crommel |l on behal f of
the Public Counsel section.

JUDGE CAILLE: M. O Rourke.

MR. O ROURKE: John O Rourke for Citizens
Uility Alliance of Washington, 212 West Second Avenue,
Spokane, Washi ngton 99201, E-mail o'rourke@napwa. org.

JUDGE CAILLE: Thank you.

And M. Trotter.

MR, TROTTER: Thank you, Donald T. Trotter,
Assi stant Attorney General for the Conmm ssion.

JUDGE CAILLE: Al right, if I could have the
Wi tnesses all stand at the sanme tinme, | will swear you

in.

Wher eupon,

ALAN P. BUCKLEY, KELLY O NORWOOD, and DONALD
W SCHOENBECK, having been first duly sworn, were called
as witnesses herein and were examned and testified as

foll ows:
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2 JUDGE CAILLE: Al right, I will go collect
3 the Comnmi ssioners, and we will proceed.

4 (Di scussion off the record.)

5 JUDGE CAILLE: | would like to wel cone the

6 Conmi ssioners to the Bench, we have taken appearances
7 and the witnesses are sworn, would you like us to go
8 around the room and have the various gentlenen introduce

9 t hensel ves?

10 CHAl RMOVAN SHOWALTER:  Sure.

11 JUDGE CAILLE: Al right.

12 Go ahead, M. Meyer.

13 MR. MEYER: David Meyer.

14 MR, NORWOOD: Kelly Norwood with Avista

15 Uilities.
16 MR. BUCKLEY: Al an Buckl ey, Comnmi ssion Staff.
17 MR. SCHOENBECK: Don Schoenbeck on behal f of

18 the I ndustrial Custoners of Northwest Utilities.

19 MR. PERKINS: WMatt Perkins on behalf of the
20 I ndustrial Custoners of Northwest Utilities.
21 MR. CROWEELL: Robert Crommell with the

22 Publ i ¢ Counsel section of the Attorney General's Ofice.
23 MR. O ROURKE: John O Rourke with the
24 Citizens Uility Aliance of Wshington.

25 MR. TROTTER: Donald T. Trotter, Assistant
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Attorney General for the Conm ssion

JUDGE CAI LLE: Thank you.

The procedure that we agreed upon for this
afternoon was for Public Counsel to go ahead and nake a
statement since Public Counsel and SNAP and CUA are the
parties that are not signing parties on the settlenent,
and so we thought the nost efficient process would be
for themto present their objections, and then we will

go to looking at the settlenment and the stipulation

itself.
So, M. Cromwell, if you would like to begin.
MR, CROWELL: Thank you, Your Honor
Good afternoon, for the record ny nane is
Robert Crommell. | am an Assistant Attorney Genera

with the Public Counsel section of the Attorney
General's O fice on whose behalf | appear today. | will
give you a brief recitation of the reasons for our
objections to the settl enent now pendi ng before you and
why the Public Counsel section recommends that it be

rej ect ed.

There are three factual issues regarding the
al l ocation of costs which we believe to be inproperly
resol ved by the settlenent. First, the Enron contract
buyout; second, the Coyote Springs 2 failures; and

third, the disposition of high priced natural gas



0035

1 contracts. W also recomend rejection of the

2 settl enent based upon policy concerns regarding the

3 apparent |ack of a coherent strategy for the sale of

4 hi gh priced gas contracts and the failure of the

5 settlement to provide forward | ooki ng gui dance on what
6 are extraordinary costs and what are ordi nary costs.

7 For these reasons individually and collectively, we

8 recommend rejection of this proposed settlenent and

9 reestabli shment of the |itigated procedural schedule.
10 The amount of the proposed disall owance, $3.2
11 MIlion, is insufficient given the range of issues

12 identified by the parties to this proceeding and the

13 recommended di sall owances. It is inappropriate for rate
14 payers to bear the burden of $15.2 MIlion in additiona
15 power supply costs for this period since it places too
16 many costs associated with extraordi nary events on rate
17 payers as conpared to sharehol ders.

18 First, with regard to the Enron contract

19 buyout. Avista proposed originally to account for the
20 Enron contract buyout as a |unp sum power purchase.

21 This despite the ERM being structured to reflect

22 contract term accounting to prevent Avista from gan ng
23 the ERM For reference | would cite you to Exhibit 49
24 at page 5. We concur on this one procedural point in

25 the settlenent stipulation, that the Enron contract
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term nation should be anortized over the origina
delivery period of the energy contract as is detailed on
page 5 of the settlenment. That said, we believe this

ki nd of contract buyout should clearly be viewed as an
extraordi nary cost that requires specific justification
by Avista in an annual ERMfiling to evaluate first

whet her action was prudent, and second, whether recovery
through the ERMis appropriate. This points to the need
for clarification regarding ordinary versus

extraordi nary costs and what docunentation Avista should
be expected to provide in their annual filing to justify
these costs. | will briefly address this issue in a
nonent, and M. O Rourke will elaborate on it from

SNAP/ CUA' s perspecti ve.

Second, rate payers should not be financially
responsi ble for the Coyote Springs 2 delays. Coyote
Springs 2 was originally schedul ed to beconme operationa
June 1st of 2002, but it did not beconme operationa
until 13 nonths later on July 1st of 2003. As Staff
Wi t ness Buckley said in his testinony:

The i mm nent comercial operation of

Coyote Springs 2 was pivotal for Staff

support of the ERM

M. Buckl ey was referring, of course, to the

original rate case settlenment. Please see Exhibit 56 at
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page 47. Delays associated with Coyote Springs 2 are
truly extraordinary as the record in this docket
i ndi cates, and dubi ous deci sions were nade resulting in
significant delay, uncertainty, and risk. | would cite
your attention to pages 7 through 9 of Exhibit 49
regardi ng design decisions and the risks the conpany
assunmed in using a single three phase transformer design
whi ch appear fromthe evidence now before you to be
cust om made equi pment without readily avail abl e
repl acenents. The conpany nmade a busi ness decision to
utilize the single three phase design instead of three
si ngl e phase transfornmers, which would have
substantially decreased down tine associated with
failure due to the nore readily avail abl e repl acenents.
Further, a careful review of M. Carlberg's
testimony, Exhibit 26, reveals a tineline of decision
maki ng, or rather a |lack thereof, due to the liability
di spute with Alston that significantly contributed to
the del ays experienced at Coyote Springs 2. The
conpany's poor business decision was conmpounded when the
second transformer also arrived defective. The current
status of the original transforner is unclear on this
record, whether it is now available as a spare or
whet her it continues to gather dust, broken, the subject

of continued dispute. It is our position that these
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busi ness deci sions are ones for which sharehol ders and
not rate payers should be at risk.

Wth respect to the costs associated with the
del ays at Coyote Springs 2, there are several different
anal yses in the record and a range of costs associ ated
with Coyote Springs 2 fromthe settling parties
thenmsel ves as well as Ms. Elder. W object to the
settlenent's proposed resolution of costs associ ated
with Coyote Springs 2 not only for the review period now
before you but also for costs properly to be considered
in the 2003 ERM revi ew which is schedul ed to occur next
spring. The settling parties purport to resolve costs
associated with a review period not yet before you which
woul d bind the Commi ssion's subsequent review of this
issue at that time. Gven this Conmission's concerns
regardi ng the policy question inherent in settlenents
that bind the Commission's future review of matters not
yet properly before it, we believe this is an additiona
reason for rejection of this settlenent.

Consi dering these two i ssues al one, the Enron
contract buyout and the costs associated with the del ays
of Coyote Springs 2, the $3.2 MIlion disallowance to
the ERMin the settlenment is insufficient and unfairly
pl aces the burden of these extraordinary costs and

guesti onabl e deci sions onto rate payers.
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1 COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: M. Cromwel |, do

2 under stand your position to be that the -- you describe
3 the Coyote 2 issues as involving the |I believe your term
4 was dubi ous deci sions by the conpany, is it Public

5 Counsel"s position that individually and collectively

6 those decisions constitute inprudence, or is it your

7 position you're sinply raising those i ssues and want a
8 determination of that issue by the Comr ssion?

9 MR. CROWELL: The latter, Your Honor. |

10 believe that while we question the prudence of the

11 deci si on, a number of the decisions that were nade

12 individually as well as the collective consequence of
13 those deci sions, we have not directly addressed that

14 topic in the testinony that we -- that our expert filed
15 in this proceeding. The argunent that | nmeke to you

16 today reflects our concerns about the collective inpact
17 of those decisions and the costs that are a consequence
18 of those decisions on the part of the conpany.

19 COWM SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  Well, if the matter is
20 one of differing views or uncertainty, but would that
21 not be at |east a subject that would lend itself for
22 possi bl e settlenent, in other words resolving those
23 di fferences?
24 MR, CROWELL: It may well be. | think the

25 question would be first whether such a settlenent
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reasonably all ocates those costs, and two, whether such
a settlenent includes costs that are properly before the
Commi ssion at this tinme, in other words within the July
1 through Decenber 1, 2002, review period. |It's our
position that both those questions should be answered in
t he negative.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: | guess | didn't grasp
the |l ast point you were making. | understand your point
that it's a matter not yet before us, but would you
restate that again so that | understand it.

MR. CROWELL: Sure. As | understand it, the
settl enent before you today purports to resolve 12
nont hs of costs associated with the Coyote Springs 2
out age.

CHAl RWOVAN SHOWALTER: Wi ch 12 nont hs, and
can you point us to the part of the settlenent that
you' re tal king about?

MR. CROWELL: Yes, it may take me a nonent,
| apologize. If you go to page 3, letter B, inpact of
del ay, availability of Coyote Springs 2, it identifies
that the project was schedul ed for conmercial operation
m d 2002 but began actual operation July 1, 2003. The
settl enment provisions on Coyote Springs 2 | believe are
farther back at E, it would be Roman Ill.E on page 7,

and it looks like it's one very long sentence that
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purports to resolve cost inpacts associated with del ay
through July 1, 2003.

CHAI RMOVAN SHOWALTER: So that's in the past,
so I'mtrying to get howthis is binding us in the
future.

MR, CROWELL: ©Ch. Because what is currently
bef ore you, Chairwonman Showalter, is the ERM revi ew
period of July 1, 2002, through Decenber 31, 2002. The
2003 ERM review wi || come before you sonmetine prior to
April 1 of 2004 when the conpany makes that filing.

CHAl RMOVAN SHOWALTER: Okay. But so this is,
when you say this is an earlier resolution of a past
period, then otherw se would have occurred but it's
still in the past; is that correct?

MR, CROWELL: Perhaps ny tenporal references
were inartful. Wat I'mattenpting to articulate is
that there are past actions which will not be properly
before you until the future point when the conpany makes
its 2003 review filing, and the settlenent that is
before you today purports to resolve costs both within
the 2002 review period that is properly now before you
and 2003 costs that will then be before you at the tine
t he conpany makes the 2003 filing.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: Are those costs able

to be bifurcated, or is it ultimtely a single issue in
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the context of this issue of not deciding, of your point
of not deciding a future matter?

MR, CROWELL: It's ny position that the
costs that are before you today are those associ ated
with the review period that is before you today.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: But ny point is, are
the costs going forward to June 30, 2003, that otherw se
woul d not have been included in the six nonth period
here, are they able to be bifurcated, or is it a single
i ssue?

MR, CROWELL: | think they can be bifurcated
with regard to the costs that are proposed for inclusion
at the tine that they are proposed for inclusion.
think you are correct in that it is a single, | hate to
-- | hesitate to call it a single incident because
believe that the record reflects that there were a
series of incidents as well as decisions attendant to
them that occurred during the 2002/2003 tinme frane that
resulted in the costs that are sought to be resol ved
through this proposed settl enent.

CHAI RWOVAN SHOWALTER: Are you sayi ng you
haven't had an opportunity to | ook at those costs and
review then? Does your objection sinply go to that past
time period was set up for our review at a later tine

period or that sonehow you as a party are prejudiced by
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our resolving those if we do in the settlenent?

MR, CROWELL: What | can tell you is that
the focus of our inquiry in this proceeding as a party
was on the 2002 period. Wiile |I can not tell you that
we have been constrained in the scope of the discovery
that we have conducted, we have not -- we did not focus
on costs associated with the 2003 revi ew peri od.

CHAIl RMOMAN SHOWALTER: | have a question when
you said that you think we should revert to litigation,
back to litigation, I'mtrying to understand what you
mean by that. Are you saying that we should reject the
settl enent and proceed with our hearing?

MR. CROWELL: Correct.

CHAl RMOVAN SHOWALTER:  All right. But if we
do that, what are the contested issues from your point
of view that you have raised in that proceeding as it
goes forth? Wat would that proceeding | ook |ike?

MR, CROWAELL: Well, | think it would depend
upon -- well, | think ultimtely it depends upon what
the Commission's ruling is on this settlenent proposa
that is before you, and then that woul d deterni ne what
the scope of the issues that would be before you in that
hearing process. As we recently experienced with the
other matter that is now before you fromthis conpany,

when the settlement was not accepted in whole, the
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parties that chose to exercise revocation, then
proceeded on what | would, | suppose | would perhaps
inartfully, call the litigative process that brought the
heari ng back before you, and all issues were argued, and
I expect all issues will be briefed to you based upon

t hat hearing.

CHAI R\WOVAN SHOWALTER: Wel |, assumi ng that
happens, I'"'mtrying to get a sense fromyou as to what
your issues in that litigation are. Are they as
reflected in the testinmony that you and your witness
filed in the proceedi ng?

MR, CROWELL: Certainly the focus of our
Wi tness's testinony were the out of cost, excuse ne, the
out - of - mar ket gas contracts and the costs associ at ed
with Avista's noving those contracts and selling them
off. That was the focus of the inquiry that we nmde
with and supported with the testinony of our wtness.

As to the issues that we woul d address,

Ms. Al der al so addresses the costs associated with
Coyote Springs 2 in regards to if this Comr ssion nade
the determination that the unavailability of Coyote
Springs 2 was not an event that should inure to the cost
of rate payers in this proceeding. She provided a
figure for you to consider as to what the forgone

benefit woul d have been to the ERM had the expectation
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that all the parties had at the tinme that the genera
rate case was resolved by settlenent, nanely that Coyote
Springs 2 would be on |ine and avail able, and that the
significant inplication is that underlying the majority
of the data that the conpany has provided in this case
is the assunption that Rathdrumis the nmargi nal heat
rate that is available, and Coyote Springs 2 has a
significantly inproved heat rate over Rathdrum and it
noves the nunbers that are before you significantly, and
that is part of what Ms. El der addressed in her
testi nony.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  Well, | realize you
haven't conpl eted your presentation, but are there any
i ssues in the settlenent agreenent that you would find
accept abl e?

MR, CROWELL: The one that | previously
identified for you, which was that the settlenment
stipul ation woul d have the Enron contract buyout be
anortized over the delivery period rather than as was
originally proposed by the conpany in its testinony in
an up front.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: Okay, and | understand
that issue, but so all other issues you would not agree
with in the settlenment agreenent?

MR, CROWAELL: Correct.
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Well, I will continue. M third point was
the costs associated with the disposition of the high
priced natural gas contracts, and it's our position that
those have not been adequately justified. By far the
| argest portion of the ERM deferral for the review
peri od now before you reflects costs associated with
hi gh priced natural gas. This out-of-nmarket gas
represents $14.7 MIlion out of $24.7 MIlion in the
Washi ngton ERM deferral or approximtely 60% of the
deferral. This gas was purchased for approxi mtely $6
per MMBTU and was intended for use at Coyote Springs 2.
This can be confirnmed through Exhibit 33 at page 4 as
wel | as the deposition and exhibits of M. Lafferty in
the original rate case, UE-011595.

Had Coyote Springs 2 been avail abl e and not
del ayed, its substantially nore efficient heat rate
woul d have been the basis of the conpany's econom c
anal ysis of whether it used this gas to generate power
either for sale into the market or to neet | oad.

Ms. El der exam ned this question, and as | nentioned she
found $12.5 MIlion in cost savings which would have
accrued had Coyote Springs 2 been available. This
ultimately is the cost of Avista's failure in judgnment
regardi ng Coyote Springs 2.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  Again, failure in
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judgnent going to what?

MR. CROWELL: Well, there were a series of
deci sions beginning with the initial design decision

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  All right, back to the
i ssues that you earlier described?

MR. CROWEELL: Yes.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: | guess |'m having
some difficulty understanding. Are you saying ipso
facto that the delay inherently neans costs shoul d be
absorbed by sharehol ders, or apparently you're saying
that the issue of those subissues within the topic of
del ay should be litigated?

MR, CROWELL: | don't think I would agree
that it's an ipso facto matter of inprudence, but |
think that this Conm ssion should exam ne very carefully
and deternmine for itself whether it believes that as an
initial matter whether the design decision that resulted
in the failure that occurred originally, the subsequent
decisions to maintain the sane design to go with the
same supplier that resulted in the sane -- well, |
apologize, in a different type of failure but with the
same result, and then, of course, the continued dispute
with Al ston over the, if you will, the liability for the
initial failure and the delays that were attending to

that in bringing the second transfornmer over.
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COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: |I'mtrying to grapple
with the issue of take the matter of the initial design
deci sion, those are matters of | suppose engi neering and
about which arguably reasonabl e people can differ
therefore subject to ultimte conprom se or back to a
position that it was as a matter of fact sinply the
wrong deci si on about which people should not have a
di spute, and between those two choi ces apparently your
viewis the fornmer, not the latter. And if so, why
isn't that a matter for potentially settling?

MR. CROWAELL: Well, | think it, as a
predicate matter, | think your initial point in terns of
an engi neering decision is correct, that reasonable
m nds could differ as to the propriety of a given design
over another design. Any engineering design has
tradeoffs regarding reliability, costs, long-term O%M
costs, et cetera. Clearly the conpany made the deci sion
it felt was in its best interests at that tine. And
think the question for you to consider in that context
i's whether given the actual course of events where the
failures continued to conpound and the del ays accrued as
a result and the costs that are proposed to be born by
rate payers as a result of those continued decision
maki ngs are proper or not.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: But isn't the issue of
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t he appropriateness of the decision made in the context
of what the conpany knew at the time, not with the
benefit of hindsight?

MR. CROWAELL: Absolutely, and clearly this
conpany consi dered many different options. |[If you
review the white paper that M. Carl berg attached to his
testimony, you will see that the conpany considered a
nunber of different options at the time and deci ded
quite clearly to continue and stay the course, and
further problens occurred. | guess ultimately it's a
question of if a captain is going to steer the ship into
the storm ultimately the captain at sone level is
responsi ble for the outcome. And if you keep steering
your ship into storms, eventually your ship mght sink

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  But what shoul d the
captain do, turn around and go back?

MR, CROWELL: It may be prudent to go back
it my be prudent to heave to and sinply ride out the
storm where you are. | don't purport to be an engi neer
or to have the answer to that.

But | think as to your first question, this
Commi ssi on does have to deci de whether given the record
before it, the decision making that the conpany engaged
in at the tinme it engaged in that decision nmaking was

reasonabl e and prudent.
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As to your second question regardi ng whet her
this is a topic that would be anenable to settlenent, |
woul d agree that it is a topic, as any discussion of
money ultimately can be, subject to resolution through
alternative dispute resolution and settlenent. And
perhaps it's unfortunate that the process that occurred
in this case was not one that was nore conductive to
that type of resolution, but --

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: | n what regard, you
were not a participant or given entry to the discussion?

MR, CROWELL: | can not address to you on
the record discussions | was not a part of. | also for
ER 408 reasons, it would not be proper for nme to discuss
the content of discussions that nmay have occurred which
| heard about. But what | can tell you in response to
your second question is that yes, in the broader scope
of things, any matter of cost where you're tal king about
dol lars can be resol ved through settlenent. That didn't
occur here, and it's our position that the $3.2 MIlion
that's proposed for resolution of these issues is
i nsufficient.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: | don't want to
prolong this, but when you say that didn't occur here,
you nean the proper discussion of costs or sone costs

weren't di scussed?
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MR, CROWELL: | hesitate only because I'm
trying to be careful about what | represent.
COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: | understand the

rul es.

MR, CROWELL: All | can say is that it is ny

view that the process that occurred here was not
conducive to resolving these in a manner that would be
acceptable to us. The figure that was reached in the
settl ement that is now before you substantively was not
sufficient in our view

Is that an adequate expl anation?

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: | will not pursue it.

MR. CROWELL: Thank you.

CHAl RMOVAN SHOWALTER:  Well, | would |ike on
the last, | believe you were tal king about the natura
gas conponent of the --

MR. CROWEELL: If | could, that was ny next

t opi c.

CHAl RWOVAN SHOMWALTER: ©Oh, | thought you were

already on it, but go ahead.

MR. CROWAELL: Well, | was --

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  Part way through it,
t hi nk.

MR, CROWELL: -- starting in. | totally

| ost the point where | was at, and | apologize if |
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repeat, but the other area of concern that we have with
this settlenment is that it fails to resolve inportant
policy issues that we believe were presented by the
case. It's our concern that Avista appears to lack a
coherent strategy to mninze costs associated with the
di sposition of the high priced gas contracts that it
possesses. Through nunmerous data requests we sought to
under st and how and why Avista chose to execute the
natural gas sales on the days that it did. Avista
mai ntains that it sold gas and purchased power to neet
| oad based on a "daily | ook" at the market. \While
attenpting to discover what this is conprised of, the
conpany has consistently failed to provide a reasonable
expl anation. |Instead, the conpany continually refers
back to the individual transactions with the results as
the justification for their actions. For exanples |
would cite you to Exhibits 14 and 21

Avi sta has refused to directly answer our
guestion posed repeatedly. W asked why they chose to
transact on particular days and nonths. Instead they
reply that the particular days they chose were
appropriate and continue to point to Exhibit 21 without
expl ai ni ng how and why they chose to transact on the
days they chose. Avista witness Storro indicates on

page 4 of Exhibit 5 that the conpany's:
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Strategy was to sell the gas through a

portfolio approach over a period of

time. By selling gas in severa

transactions over tine, it helps to

ensure that the conpany did not sell al

the gas at the | east advantageous tine.

However, if you have Exhibit 38 available to
you, you could see that a close inspection of Avista's
transactions to sell the August 2002 gas which was
originally intended for Coyote Springs 2 reveals that
t hese transactions do not seemto be consistent with
their strategy to sell gas in several transactions over
time.

CHAI RWOMAN SHOWALTER: | guess | want to
interrupt here, because it seenms to ne that we're
getting into in essence contested evidence. Should we
go forward? Isn't the nature of a settlenent is that
the parties settle an issue without litigating those
contested issues, and in that respect | want to draw the
di stincti on between a settlenent that does establish a
policy for the future, which of course the Comni ssion
has to approve, versus a settlenment that does not
establish or resolve a policy issue. And the settl enent
in front of us seens to nme to be in the latter group

You have criticized it for its failure to establish a
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policy for a strategy for Avista, and it does appear
that it does not do that, but address why that is a
def ect .

MR. CROWELL: Ckay, | will, thank you. The
two policy issues essentially are the |ack of a
strategy, a coherent strategy, and two, discrimnation
bet ween ordi nary and extraordinary costs. | think
you' re absolutely correct that the settlement is black
box if you will in that regard. The reason we feel that
havi ng both those issues is critically inportant is
because this is just the first of a nunber of annual ERM
reviews that are going to cone before you. W are
concerned about the consequences and the apparent
consequence to a |ack of a coherent strategy for these
gas sales. W're simlarly concerned that what we saw
brought before the Conmission in this filing were costs
that we woul d deem extraordi nary that would need to be
specifically justified treated as ordinary for inclusion
t hrough the ERM whereas the uncontroverted testinony at
the rate case was that the ERM was for inclusion of
ordi nary costs specifically associated with hydro
variability.

CHAIl RWOMAN SHOWALTER:  Ckay, but now then
understand why you don't |like the settlenent because you

say it resolves those issues with paynents that you
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don't agree with, but in ternms of the policy
considerations, is it right that it sinply reserves to
another day in a contested setting a ruling by this
Commission if it's posed to it appropriately an order
about strategy or extraordinary versus ordinary?

MR, CROWELL: That's exactly correct, and
our concern is just that.

CHAI RMOVAN SHOWALTER: So you want it
litigated now is what you're saying?

MR. CROWAELL: Well, this is the first of
many of these instances that you're going to face, and
the i ssues won't go away, the costs won't go away. |It's
my under standi ng that these out-of-market gas contracts
are going to be with this conpany and before this
Conmi ssion essentially through 2004 period, and they
taper off thereafter. So it's our position that it was,
and one of the reasons why we got significantly involved
in this proceeding initially as an initial matter was
because we felt that it was essentially a case of first
i mpression for this conpany's ERM W thought it
i mportant to flush these issues out before the
Conmi ssion and to have a resolution fromthe Comm ssion
on these policy issues and the question of what's
appropriate.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: I f | can pursue that
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1 point, | suppose a strategy is to make daily decisions
2 about the nature of the market and whether it's the best
3 way to proceed that day by a marketer is whether to sel

4 or not. Another strategy is to have a relatively much

5 nore nmechani stic approach that says we'll always sell in
6 certain circunstances. | suppose one can argue one is
7 i nherently better than the other. You could be a w nner
8 in the first instance or you could be a winner in the

9 second or vice versa dependi ng upon after-the-fact

10 analysis. 1s this do you believe sort of this first

11 time through that the Conmmi ssion |istening to what will
12 be di sputed evidence will be in a position to direct how
13 that kind of choice should be made?

14 MR, CROWELL: It's our position that this
15 Conmission is in a position to provide guidance to

16 Avista regarding its treatnment of these out-of-narket
17 gas contracts. In terns of having a daily look if you
18 will versus a nore conprehensive strategy, | think the
19 qguestion that the Commr ssion has to ask is if the

20 conpany chooses to have a daily tradi ng perspective, we
21 wake up, we | ook, we decide whether to trade or not to
22 trade, then presumably the experience of that would

23 gui de one's future behavior. And, for exanple, the

24 trading that occurred last May would informthe trading

25 that would occur in June and July and August.
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COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  \hy?

MR, CROWELL: Why? Because one hopes that
one learns fromone's experiences.

COWM SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  But experience in the
mar ket is as Morgan says prices vary.

CHAl RAMOVAN SHOWALTER: | nean you coul d have
ten years of experience doing daily judgnments or ten
years of experience doing quarterly judgnents, is one
better than the other?

MR. CROWAELL: | don't think we are
purporting to advocate that one is necessarily better
than the other, but what | have identified for you
through Ms. Elder's testinobny is that the strategy that
Avi sta purports to foll ow does not appear to be
reflective in the behavior that they engaged in in these
transactions. And if you review Exhibit | believe it's
38, | think there is anple evidence to indicate that
there isn't the type of distribution of trading activity
that you would assunme froma daily strategy or that you
woul d see. There seens to be sone other either behavior
or criteria that's guiding the activity.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: | assunme you' re not
suggesting, are you, that the conpany woul d have been
incented by other factors other than to get the best

price it could in the sense that in this environnent the
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i nterests of the sharehol ders and the rate payers would
be identical ?

MR, CROWELL: | think your supposition if
based on the assunption that the interests of rate
payers and shareholders is identical would be true. |
don't know that the interests of rate payers and
shar ehol ders in the circunstances now before you are
i denti cal

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  |s that issue raised
in testinony?

MR. CROWAELL: | believe it is in Ms. Elder's
testimony. She addressed the different costs that are
proposed for inclusion in the ERM | think the one
thing to keep in mnd is that there are incentives for
costs based upon the structure of the ERM For exanple,
if we were starting at zero on January 1 of '03, or
let's take '04 since it's soon enough to arrive, the $9
M 11lion dead band exists as an initial matter. The
conpany has a very strong incentive to mnimze costs
that get booked to the ERM because it is responsible for
those initial $9 MIlion of costs. Thereafter, the
i ncentive does change.

A good exanple of that is the Enron contract
buyout. One of our concerns about the conpany's

approach for including it in the 2002 revi ew period
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that's now before you is because the dead band had

al ready been reached, whereas if the Enron contract is
anortized over the delivery period, as is proposed by
the settlement, there is a possibility that it would
fall conpletely within the dead band and rate payers
woul d not absorb those costs.

CHAl RWNOMVAN SHOWALTER: Back on the ERM am |
right that under Ms. Elder's testinony you woul d have a
reduction of $1.1 MIlion in the sharing account bel ow
Avi sta's?

MR, CROWELL: | believe it was 1.06, yes.

CHAI RWOVAN SHOWALTER: Okay. And then is it
correct that the settlenent has a reduction of $3.2
MI1lion?

MR. CROWELL: Yes.

CHAl RWOMAN SHOWALTER:  So isn't the reduction
in the settlenent three tines as big as what you were
r ecommendi ng?

MR. CROWELL: M. Elder's recomendation
went only as to the high priced natural gas contracts
and did not go directly to the Coyote Springs 2 and
Enron contract buyouts with regard to the 1.06 was
focused only on the gas. Her recomendati on regarding
t he consequence of the Coyote Springs 2 failures was |

believe $12.5 M I1lion.
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CHAl RWOVAN SHOWALTER:  Ckay.

MR. CROWAELL: Well, as | said, one of our
concerns with regard to these policy issues is that they
will be major drivers of costs going forward both for
the ERMreview that you will see next spring and the
subsequent years to follow. W believe that it's also
illumnating to contract the conpany's risk nanagenent
policy which can be found at Exhibit 19 which outlines
procedures and responsibilities to manage risk with the
utter lack of explanation we received fromthe conpany
as to howit effectively nmanaged the risks associ ated
with the out-of-market gas. Wile the risk nmanagenent
policy makes it appear that the conpany will do al
manner of things to manage risk, the only itens the
conpany has identified in order to justify the $14.7
MI1lion associated with out-of-nmarket gas sales is dea
tickets and related information for the specific 23
transactions they executed as well as their two sentence
description of their strategy. As | have expl ained, we
believe this is insufficient.

G ven the anmpunt of rate payer noney at
i ssue, we assert that the conpany was obligated to nore
carefully docunent its decisions including its decisions
to take no action and that it should have a strategy for

mtigating costs which can be docunented. W believe
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the conpany's explanations are insufficient for the
Commi ssion to make a finding that the conpany has
prudently managed the costs associated with these

out - of - mar ket gas contracts and believe the Comm ssion
shoul d reject the proposed settlenent on this basis.

CHAl RMOVAN SHOWALTER: Just procedurally, are
your comments here in the nature of a brief opposing the
settl enent?

MR. CROWELL: | have tried to succinctly
state the concerns we have regarding the settl enent
that's now before you. | apologize if I"'mreading it in
an overly mechani stic fashion.

CHAl RAOMAN SHOWALTER:  Well, it's as if we
had called for coment on the settlenment and you had
written sonething that was equival ent to what you just
stated on the record; is that right?

MR. CROWELL: Fairly close, yes.

CHAl RMOVAN SHOWALTER:  And |'m just asking,
proposing to the other parties, is there a need or do
you see a need to respond to M. Crommel|'s conments, or
is your presentation in a nmonment going to be sufficient?

MR. MEYER | think the latter was our intent
is that nmenbers of the panel could respond as needed and
of fer their own comrent on this, and that should suffice

to tee the matter up.
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MR, TROTTER: Right now | agree with conpany
counsel as to the current status of the statenent that
M. Cromnel|l has made to date

MR. CROWELL: M final point is with regard
to ordinary versus extraordinary costs which we believe
shoul d be exami ned individually by this Comm ssion. The
Commi ssion's fifth supplenental order in the genera
rate case docket nmade it clear that the ERM was desi gned
to deal with normal variability and power supply costs,
again specifically the variability of hydro. | direct
your attention to Paragraph 39 of the fifth suppl enental
order. The ERM was designed to deal with this nornmal
variability. Wth respect to extraordinary costs such
as the delay of Coyote Springs 2, there should not be a
presunption that such costs should be recovered through
the ERM The conpany nust make a showi ng that such
costs were prudently incurred. Even then the Comm ssion
must determ ne what type of sharing is appropriate. The
ERM was not designed to place the burden of 90% of these
extraordinary costs on rate payers. In extraordinary
ci rcunst ances, sharing might be nore appropriately 50/50
or 30/70.

In conclusion, since this is the first ERM
review, we believe it is inmportant for the Commission to

provi de gui dance and direction regarding these inportant
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policy questions. W believe that taken collectively
the proposed settlenent does not appropriately allocate
costs between rate payers and sharehol ders for the costs
proposed for inclusion in the ERM Nor does it resolve
i nportant policy questions this Conmi ssion will face
again all too soon. Finally, the settlement purports to
bi nd the Conmission's future consideration of Coyote
Springs 2 costs by resolving all Coyote Springs 2 outage
associ ated costs in advance of the 2003 ERM revi ew when
in our opinion half of those costs are yet to be
properly considered. Thank you.

JUDGE CAILLE: M. O Rourke.

MR. O ROURKE: John O Rourke fromthe
Citizens Utility Alliance of Washington. M. Cromnell
did speak in detail and he answered your questions about
the ordi nary versus extraordi nary cost issue, but | have
come here today because we feel that this is a very
i rportant issue that the Comm ssion should address in
this the first ERM WII| the ERM continue to be a catch
all in which the conmpany can dunp all the costs it
wi shes onto the rate payers, or does it becone what it
was intended to be, a way to efficiently apportion
ordinary variations in power costs.

The | anguage from Paragraph 38 of the

Commi ssion's fifth suppl enmental order which authorized



0064

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

the ERM states that the ERMis for the recovery of
ordinary variations in power costs. It states:
We also clarified through colloquy with
the witnesses that the ERMis intended
to address only the ordinary variations
in power costs that may occur going
forward, not extraordinary costs.
In the foll owi ng paragraph of that order
M. Elgin fromthe Conmi ssion Staff says:
The ERM is expected to deal with "norma
variability of hydro" and that the ERM
is not neant to deal with "extraordi nary
ci rcumst ances”.
And in this case in his direct testinony,
M. Buckl ey identified the ordi nary power costs he
t hought bel onged in the ERM He said:
Anyt hi ng ot her than nornmal weather
variation, normal variations in water
conditions, reasonable variations in
whol esal e prices, and nornmal day-to-day
operations should be considered an
extraordinary variation
And he sai d:
There should be no presunption that any

such itemor variation is recoverable
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under the ERM

And we agree, but unfortunately the critica
i ssue of what belongs in the ERM and what does not is
| eft unanswered by the proposed settlenent. Unless the
Commi ssion acts and clarifies this process, we can
expect to see the conpany continue to try to use this
process to recover nore of the extraordinary costs that
this process was never neant to address. Wthout the

Conmi ssion's firm guidance on what belongs in the ERM

we will be left with the current inefficient process in
whi ch the conpany will present us with a haystack of
i nformation, and we will be forced to search that

haystack for the needles that don't belong and then try
to convince the conpany or the Comm ssion that they do
not bel ong.

And frankly speaking, public interest
organi zations |like mine, we don't have the resources to
pi ck through ERM s every year, and that's why we fee
that we need to go back to what the original words were
in the order and what we think the ERM was intended to
be. So we are asking the Comrission to use this, the
first ERM to establish that the ERMw Il only involve
ordi nary costs and not extraordi nary costs or events,
and so we ask the Conmission to reject the proposed

settlenent in its current form
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JUDGE CAILLE: M. Trotter, were you planning
to go next?

MR. TROTTER: No, Your Honor, | think it
woul d be appropriate for the panelists to go ahead.

I would like just to nake one brief coment,
and that is that the order that we're tal ki ng about
setting up the ERM did not preclude the conpany from
asking for extraordinary costs. It sinply asked themto
identify them and prove they're entitled to recovery.

We can debate about whet her they have done that, but
it's certainly permtted under the Commi ssion order for
themto ask for it, and certainly in this docket we
eventual ly got there. As you know, they were required
to produce specific testinony on the specific issues,
and they did so. So | guess just as a legal matter |
will need to take objection to M. O Rourke's statenent
t hat extraordi nary costs are not recoverable through the
ERM they plainly are. The order said that they have to
specifically request recovery, so they did, and that's
where we are. So | just wanted to point out to you that
is more of a legal nmatter than a matter to be addressed
by the experts.

But with that, | would just think that our
panel i sts can answer your questions or respond to what

they have just heard at your pleasure.
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COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  Well, it would seemto
me we have two issues. One, there's a general defense
or the argunent is about the settlenment document that's
in front of us, and then there's the question of the
criticisms that are critiqued from Public Counsel. 1'm
sure they overlap, but they're sonmewhat different. So
how does the panel or the attorneys, do the attorneys
propose that those issues be separated or nerged?

MR. NORWOOD: | guess | would be glad to
respond to the issues raised by Public Counsel, but at
the sane sense | don't want to go through sone nateria
that you already know or are fam liar with, but | think
it would be appropriate to respond to a nunber of the
i ssues that have been raised to clarify a nunber of
things that have already been rai sed by Public Counsel

CHAl RAOMAN SHOWALTER: | nean it strikes ne
that a kind of a presentation of the settlenent and an
expl anation of its elenents during which you address the
obj ections raised by Public Counsel would be hel pful

MR, NORWOOD: Okay, | would be glad to do
t hat .

Okay, M. Buckley says that | can go, and
then he will go. [I'msure they will chinme in as we nove
t hrough this.

So going then to the stipulation, and perhaps
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I will just wal k through page by page so that we can
cover each issue in order, | will start with page 2
under contested issues. And the first issue identified
at the bottom of page 2 of the stipulation is Enron
contract buyout. And as you have heard, this is an
agreenent where Avista had entered into an agreenent
with Enron to purchase power fromthem for the period
2004 through 2006, so it was a three year purchase that
we had nmade fromthem 25 nmegawatts was the anount.
The price is confidential. Through Enron's bankruptcy
and working with the bankruptcy judge, we had the
opportunity to enter into an agreenent to buy out that
contract, and so through negotiations we were able to
negotiate a price to buy that contract out. And al ong
with that buyout, Enron actually owed Avista for prior
sales to them an anopunt of nmoney. It was basically
accounts receivable for us where we had al ready provi ded
the services, but they had not paid us because of the
bankruptcy situation.

And so through that process, then we bought
out the contract, made a paynent to Enron in Cctober of
' 02, which was during the review period, and we booked
t hat paynment, approximately $1.8 MIlion for the
Washi ngton jurisdiction, we booked that to the account

555, purchase power account, and that entry was nmde
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consistent with what we're required to do under
general ly accepted accounting principles. Under our
accounting practices and principles, we have to record
that, and we did consistent with those principles.

In the nmonthly report that we sent to the
Staff, the Conmi ssion, as well as the other parties, we
identified that contract as an itemthat occurred during
the period, and I think it was a week after that one of
the Staff nenbers called us and asked for a copy of the
agreenent. So in that sense, when we tal k about
ordi nary or extraordinary, what are the factors driving
the deferral balance, this was a case where we
identified that as an item a unique item and Staff
foll owed up and asked for nore information. And then
of course, in this filing then we have provided
testi mony and supporting docunentation of the econonics
of the deal as well as the accounting for the deal

Now it's ny understanding that at |east with
the signing parties to the stipulation there's no
di sagreenent that it was the right thing to do to buy
out the contract. The econonics were right, it was the
right thing to do. The issue that we have before us
here in this case is that was it appropriate to book al
of it in '02, or should you have spread it to the '04 to

'"06 period. Through this stipulation what we have
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1 agreed to is to remove $921,000 fromthe deferra

2 bal ance currently and then anortize that bal ance over

3 the 2004 to 2006 period. And as part of the stipul ated
4 settl enment, we have agreed that that's a reasonable

5 resolution of that Enron issue.

6 | will make another comrent about the or

7 respond to the conment about ordinary and extraordinary.
8 There are a nunber of things that have been rai sed here.
9 One exanple was the Col strip outage, and there was a

10 guestion about is that ordinary, is it extraordinary.

11 It's a given that those types of projects are going to
12 be out fromtime to time, and in our view we don't think
13 that -- it's going to be very difficult to try to

14 determ ne now what's ordinary and what's not ordinary.
15 And what we have proposed through this stipulation is as
16 we continue to provide these nonthly reports to the

17 Conmi ssion, to ICNU, to Public Counsel, we will continue
18 to identify those itenms that are driving the deferrals.
19 And al so in here we have indicated that as we
20 get to the end of the year and get ready to file the

21 annual review filing that the -- we will -- the parties
22 can request a technical conference where we will get

23 t oget her and provide opportunity for themto identify

24 any issues in those reports, and we'll talk about the

25 maj or factors driving the deferrals. And then we would
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plan to include testinony, exhibits, supporting
docunent ati on around those issues as well as other
docunent ation regarding the deferrals for the period.

CHAl RAOMAN SHOWALTER:  Well, just on this
i ssue of extraordinary and ordinary, this ties in with
M. Trotter's comments earlier, is this a correct
characterization? 1In order to litigate and resolve
t hese issues, we would have to first decide as a
conceptual matter what constitutes ordinary and what is
extraordi nary, and then we would have to nmake a factua
determ nation of individual expenses as to which side of
that line they fell on, but that in any event, whether
they are ordinary or extraordinary, recovery is
available if justified, and that here the settling
parties agreed that anounts in the settlenent are
justified w thout perhaps agreei ng anong thensel ves
whet her those amobunts fell on the ordinary or
extraordinary side of the line, that is from each of
your points of view, however you view extraordinary and
ordinary in these facts, you agree that the anpunts in
the settlenent are appropriate.

MR. NORWOOD: | don't think that from what --
| believe what M. Trotter said does not require us to
try to put it into a category of ordinary or

extraordinary. As M. Trotter said, the ERM nechani sm
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allows us to recover the costs irrespective of whether
they're one or the other as long as there's opportunity
to review those costs. And what we have conmitted to do
is to identify those itenms through the nmonthly reports
and provide information through the filings so that al
the parties can review them whether they're ordinary or
extraordi nary, and then nake recomendati ons on whet her
they' re reasonable or not.

MR. BUCKLEY: Let nme add sonmething on that.

| think the settlement also -- the main feature for ne
is to-- and | think the other parties on the settlenent
is that it still allows us to identify itens on a

ongoi ng basis that we think nmay be extraordinary, if you
will, and require an additional |evel of testinony and
support to be included in the ERM It's not neant to
preclude any outcone of any further litigation on those
issues. It's sinply neant to kind of give a heads up to
t he conpany saying the parties think that X is an issue
that you really need to do your homework on and provide
a reason for rate payers to be picking up those costs
through the ERM and -- but we could still litigate

whet her we think those are appropriate to be included.
We may still disagree, and we nay disagree to the extent
that they should be recovered if at all. But the point

is it allows us a chance to at |east during the period
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to identify those.

And in nmy original testinmony |I was asking the
Conmmi ssion to perhaps identify specific issues that may
be consi dered extraordinary versus ordinary. The
settl enment does not require that but -- and | think it's
acceptabl e for purposes of the settlenent. Because as
soon as we start identifying one issue, then another one
will come up that wasn't identified, and so | think it's
better just to do it on a nonth-by-nonth basis of us
| ooking at the reports, seeing what's going in there,
and then giving a heads up to the conpany on whet her
that needs that extra level of support that the origina
ERM settl ement antici pated.

CHAl RWOVAN SHOWALTER: Okay. But that
nont hly process you're tal king about is prospective, and
what nmy question really has to do with the anpunts of
nmoney that are settled in this proposed settl enent.
They' re backward | ooking, right?

MR, SCHOENBECK: | woul d answer your question
as just an affirmative yes.

CHAI RWOVAN SHOWALTER:  Thank you.

MR. SCHOENBECK: \Whether you call these
i ssues ordinary or extraordi nary, we have agreed that
these are the amounts that shoul d be booked and the

reductions in the UM bal ance attributable to them
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COWM SSI ONER HEMSTAD: | will make a conment
and a question. All right, so the point is that whether
something ultinmately is classified as ordinary or
extraordinary, all of those costs are potentially able
to be included within the ERW?

MR. BUCKLEY: The conpany can ask for those.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  Yes.

MR BUCKLEY: Yes.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  Well, | would like to
interject right there and cone back to M. Crommel | and
M. O Rourke, do you disagree with that?

MR, CROWELL: | would agree with
M. Trotter's analysis that the fifth suppl enental order
in the underlying rate case does not preclude the
conpany from asking for recovery of costs. Wat | would
say --

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD:  Recovery of the
extraordi nary costs --

MR, CROWELL: O extraordinary costs.

COW SSI ONER HEMSTAD: -- within the ERW?

MR. CROWELL: Wthin the ERM | woul d have
to go back and look at it, but that is ny recollection
To be honest, | haven't |ooked at the fifth suppl enental
order in quite some tine, but |I think the point was that

the testinony before you in that case was that the
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1 pur pose of the ERM was for recovery of ordinary costs,
2 and it was our expectation that any recovery of

3 extraordinary costs would be considered on a fact

4 specific basis with regard to that proposed cost.

5 CHAl RWOVAN SHOWALTER: Ckay, but isn't this
6 proceedi ng, hasn't this proceedi ng, not today but

7 | eading up to today, done exactly that?

8 MR, CROWELL: That would | suppose depend
9 upon the outcome of this proceedi ng today.

10 CHAl RMOVAN SHOWALTER:  Wel |, no, |'m saying
11 have the expenses, whether you call them extraordinary
12 or ordinary, been raised anong the parties for review as
13 to whether they should be recovered either as

14 extraordi nary or as ordinary?

15 MR. CROWELL: Yes.
16 CHAI RWOVAN SHOMALTER: Okay, thank you.
17 MR. NORWOOD: May | add sonething there. In

18 Exhibit 3 in this docket is an excerpt of the

19 Conmi ssion's order. At the bottom of that page, it

20 says:

21 There is nothing in the settlenent

22 stipul ation that precludes the conpany
23 fromseeking relief from extraordi nary
24 or other circumstances that call for

25 nmodi fi cati on of the ERM
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That's the text that foll ows what
M. O Rourke stated earlier in terns of ordinary and
extraordinary. | think it's also inportant to note that
when M. O Rourke read his statement fromM. Elgin's
testinony, he didn't finish all of what M. Elgin said
in terms of the definition or what we're |ooking at,
ordinary and extraordinary. And in here it shows that:

From Staff's perspective, the settl enent

agreenent does not deal with

extraordi nary circunstances that we have

dealt with in 2000/ 2001 period that gave

rise to the existing deferrals. The

settl enent does not deal with those

conditions, it just can't, those inpacts

and costs are just too big.

And it goes on. M point is that the
stipulation and the order did not define what is
ordinary and extraordinary. It did not preclude the
conpany fromincluding the costs that fall into these
accounts that are being tracked through the ERM and the
conpany is committed to identify those issues nonthly,
whi ch we have. And the Staff has foll owed up with
questions and need nore information, and | think that
wor ks very well and we will continue that through the

future.
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COW SSIONER OSHIE: M. O Rourke, did you
have a comment ?

MR. O ROURKE: Yes, two concerns. \When do we
have a general rate case, if these costs all go into the
ERM when does the public at large participate in this
process, when does the public at large get to comment on
this if we -- if they can -- ny vision of this is that
extraordi nary costs, sure, they can petition, but it
woul d be public policy that it be rejected and that it
be put into a general rate case where there's |arger
public participation.

CHAIl RWOMVAN SHOWALTER:  |'m not sure you
shoul d be asking nme the questions, but | guess | wll --

MR O ROURKE: Well, | didn't nmean to ask you
a question. I'mjust nmaking a statement that --

CHAl RMOVAN SHOWALTER: Wel |, maybe that was a
rhetorical question.

MR. O ROURKE: | nean what |I'msaying is this
is the first ERM and these -- we don't want to paper
over these questions.

CHAl RWOVAN SHOWALTER:  All right.

MR. O ROURKE: | think nowis the appropriate

CHAl RWOVAN SHOWALTER: But isn't there going

to be a 90 day proceeding periodically with public
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noti ce and potential review of the expenses that have
not yet been resolved to date?

MR. NORWOOD: That's correct. On or before
April 1 of every year the conpany will file, and we have
comritted here to file testinony and exhibits
i dentifying the deferrals through the ERM and what the
reasons were, and there's opportunity then for
participation by all parties.

CHAIl RMOVAN SHOWALTER: And that seens to ne
to be your answer, M. O Rourke. Like any rate case, a
general rate case also can be settled. And it just
nmeans that if we accept the settlenent, then the issues
rai sed or not or policy issues not resolved in that case
or expenses to date resolved by the settlenent are
resol ved, the next period becones the next period both
for the subsequent expenses or rates as well as for
ongoi ng or unresolved or new policy issues.

MR, BUCKLEY: | think it's also inportant to
poi nt out that the purpose of the | anguage in the
settlenent is also to nake sure that the burden of proof
is on the conpany to justify the inclusion into the ERM
and the associated cost, and | think that addresses -- |
think one of M. O Rourke's problenms is that it should
not be for the parties to | ook through that haystack for

the needle that -- and then bring that up as an issue.
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The purpose of this is to allow the parties that are
reviewing the nonthly reports and the subsequent annua
filing or information or whatever we have at the end of
t he period, whether it be a technical conference or
sonething like that, to point out and nake it clear to
the conpany that these issues need to be supported and
that it's not up to those parties to provide the backup
or the burden of proof for including that into the ERM
that it's the conpany's. | think that's what that does.
MR, NORWOOD: If | may continue on to Coyote
Springs 2 and the delay of that project. As has been
menti oned earlier, the project was originally schedul ed
to come on line in the mddl e of 2002. The project was
del ayed because of the bankruptcy as well as -- the
bankruptcy of Enron as well as the problens with the
generator step-up transforner. The project was del ayed
until July 1 of 2003. W agree as a conpany that the
del ay of the project during the ERM period did result in
costs being higher than what they otherw se would have
been if Coyote Springs had been available. As we have
progressed through this proceedi ng, the conpany has
negotiated with the parties and have agreed to reduce
t he ERM bal ance by an anount that's listed in here
regarding the -- to reflect that delay in Coyote Springs

2, and we have agreed that -- to resolve that issue
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t hrough June 30th of 2003.

O course, there was sone discussion earlier
about the end of '02 versus the end of '03, July of '03.
This really is a single issue. |If this is not resolved
t hrough June 30th of '03, we would be rehashing the sanme
issue. It's a 12 nonth outage. It's a continuation of
the sane original outage of the plant, and so the
agreenent of the signhing parties anyway is that it is
reasonabl e and appropriate to deal with this nowin this
proceedi ng, resolve it through June of '03.

We have continued to provide the nonthly
reports, and of course this is Decenber of '03, so we
continue to provide the nonthly reports to Staff and
other parties related to the deferrals during the
January through June peri od.

MR, SCHOENBECK: Could | add sonmething on
this one, Kelly, are you done?

I would also like to say we were very
supportive of having this particular issue go through
the full 12 nonth period because it's actually, as was
duly noted, we have all the historical information
al ready, all of these events have occurred, and right
now t he debt is fresh, particularly with regard to not
only their replacenent power purchases but also with the

alternative market purchases where both with respect to
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the market price of gas and the forward market price of
spot purchases. So since the information was so
current, we thought it would actually be an efficient
process to resolve this issue for the entire 12 nonth
peri od.

Having said that, | also want to say what
this particular part of the settlenment does not address
whi ch we coul d subsequently address in another ERM
application, and that has to do with the capital costs
associated with the plant, and it also has to do to the
extent with all the other spot market purchases. In
ot her words, to the extent the spot nmarket purchases
i ncurred even for the period of January through June
2003 were extraordinarily high or far above what the
mar ket prices were at that time, we could also challenge
those particular purchases. So in actuality it's a very
narrow i ssue that's being decided here, and what the
issue is is the variable of costs associated with the 12
nonth delay in Coyote Springs.

MR, TROTTER: Your Honor, may | just ask a
clarifying question?

JUDGE CAI LLE: Yes.

MR. TROTTER: | think M. Schoenbeck said
there could be recovery of the capital costs associated

with Coyote Springs through the ERM and | don't know if
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he meant that or a general rate case.

MR, SCHOENBECK: GCh, | neant a general rate
case.

MR, TROTTER: Perhaps M. Buckl ey can just
briefly indicate whether capital costs are recovered
t hrough the ERM or whet her those accounts do not include
that type of costs.

MR. BUCKLEY: | agree with that, that would
be an issue for the next general rate case. There is in
rate base or rates now enbedded the original costs
associated with Coyote, but this would be an increnental
capital cost associated with those actions, associated
with the delay in the transformer in that

MR, TROTTER: Thank you, Your Honor

MR. NORWOOD: Moving on then unless there's
ot her questions on the delay of CS2.

Anot her issue that was raised earlier was the
natural gas contracts and the question of did the
conpany achi eve the right value or adequate value from
the sale of those contracts. | think it is inportant to
note, and actually all three of the parties, Staff,

I CNU, and Public Counsel recognized that the origina
deci sion to purchase that natural gas back in 2001 has
al ready been addressed in a prior proceeding, and so

what we're dealing with here and Public Counsel's case
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is witness Elder raised the issue of did we pick the
right days to sell the gas and in many cases buy the
power in order to gain the maxi mum benefit or the right
benefit for custoners. And in our view, as | nentioned
before, there -- in nost of the cases where we actually
sold the natural gas during the period, we actually
bought power, and the reason we did that was it was |ess
expensive to purchase electricity than to run the gas

t hrough the turbines and produce electricity, and so we
sold the gas and bought the power.

Now in ternms of did we pick the right days,
it's obviously difficult and | think everyone
understands and there was di scussion earlier that can
you predict the market for electricity or natural gas,
and | believe the answer is no. |If, for exanple, | knew
that the price of natural gas was going to be higher two
days from now, then |I would obviously want to wait and
sell my gas two days fromnow. But the reality is |
woul d want to buy nore gas today if | knew the price was
going to be higher, and then | would sell nobre gas two
days fromnow. The problemis you just don't know which
way the market is going to go whether it's tomorrow or
next week or next nonth or the quarters out.

What we have done, and we have outlined sone

of it inthe stipulation in an effort to try to respond



0084

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

to the concerns of Public Counsel, is to nunber one
provi de nore information around what the process is when
we rmeke decisions. And maybe if | can just give you an
exanple. As we're |ooking out to the second quarter of
next year right now, M. Storro is the director of the
power resource group, he is |ooking at questions,
answering questions such as am| long or am| short.

And in some cases he may be long in April, or excuse ne,
short in April but long in May-June if you have good
runoff. So he may be | ooking at decisions like selling
of f April and then buying, or excuse me, buying Apri

and selling June. He's also |looking at what the price
is for electricity in terms of meking purchases as wel
as the price of natural gas during that tinme franme, and
so he's going to be maki ng decisions about if I'mshort
am| going to buy electricity or am| going to buy gas.
So he's looking at the prices out there. He's also

| ooking at, to the extent he wants to make a deal

| ooking at the counter parties that are available to do

a deal. And if, for exanple, out in June of next year
you need to know whether June is trading yet. |Is there
any liquidity in the market. It may be that Q2 is the

only thing that's trading right now, so if you want to
buy June, you have to buy April, My, and June.

So there's a nunber of factors that he's
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| ooking at in making his decisions around whether | buy
or sell. Unfortunately, there's not a magic formula or
a mechani sm where you say, if all these things |ine up
automatically, then | automatically know that |'m going
to buy or sell. There just isn't that formula, so
there's all of those factors that go into the decision
to buy or sell.

VWhat we have also indicated in here is that
we will continue to docunent and reinforce our
docunentation to provide all those things that we | ook
at. | think it's been brought up earlier that there was
concern about, well, we provided docunentation on the
days we did the deals, but there was concern about how
about the days you didn't do the deals. And in our
responses to discovery, we did provide information that
shows on a daily basis we do take a | ook at at |east 18
nmont hs out what are our positions |ong or short, what
are market prices for that time period, both electric
and natural gas, what are the heat rates of our therma
plants. And then given the market prices that are
there, is it going to be economic to run ny thermals or
sell the gas and buy electricity. All of that analysis
is done on a daily basis, and we provided that in this
docket, and that will be available on a going forward

basis for everyone to take a | ook to see what the
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conditions were on a daily basis.

In our viewin |looking at the recomendati on
of Public Counsel to the disallowance of the $1, 060, 000
that they reconmended, if you | ook at -- nunmber one, ny
concern is doing an after the fact Mnday norni ng
qguarterback approach of after the fact the nunbers would
tell you yes, there are other days that we could have
chosen to get nore value. The concern | have is that at
the time we did the deals, there really is no way to
know where the market is going to go. As is shown in
M. Storro's testinony, we actually did our own after
the fact where we took every day for six nonths prior to
the tinme that the gas was going to be delivered to see
on the days that we picked, did we do at |east as wel
as what the average woul d have been if you would have
done an equal anmpunt every day, if you would have sold
an equal amount every day, and the result shows that we
actually did better than if you had chosen to sell an
equal anount every day or if you had done a random sal e,
we actually did better than that. So even though
don't believe that type of analysis is appropriate, |
think it denonstrates that we did make choices to
mnimze the cost to custonmers, and in fact on every
occasi on where we sold the gas, bought the power, it

resulted in a reduction in the cost to our custoners



0087

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

which is credited back through the energy recovery
mechanism And so for those reasons, | don't think that
the recomendation there is appropriate.

MR. BUCKLEY: Add a few comrents. | think
this is a situation where we get there is sone rebutta
of previous coments by the parties versus the
settlenent and just what the settlenent, howit rel ates
to Staff's support of the settlenment. | wll sinply
leave it at that. The settlement basically addresses,
want to nmake it clear froma Staff perspective, only the
2002 gas resal e transactions that were nade, and it
addresses the adjustnent that's proposed to the ERM
bal ance, it resolves any issues we have associated with
that time period only. The transactions that will be
made or have been nade in 2003 will be reviewed in the
2003 review period and nmay be subject to, you know,
further testinmony. So | just wanted to make it clear
what this settlenent addresses as far as we're
concer ned.

MR. NORWOOD: | think that covers the issues.
The issue of strategy for sales | think | have addressed
to some degree, and we have al ready covered the ordinary
and extraordi nary.

JUDGE CAILLE: Are there any other questions

fromthe Conmm ssi oners?
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1 M. Crommel |, did you have anything further?
2 MR, CROWELL: No thank you, Your Honor.

3 JUDGE CAILLE: M. O Rourke?

4 MR. O ROURKE: Not hing further.

5 (Di scussion on the Bench.)

6 JUDGE CAILLE: Al right, thank you everyone,
7 this will be taken under advi sement.

8 (Hearing adjourned at 2:50 p.m)
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